

Xi'an International School After School Activity Student Handbook 2025-2026

Xi'an International School Yan Ta Qu, Yu Dou Lu #188 Xi'an, Shaanxi 710065 (+86) 029-8533-5014 x804 office@xischool.com

Table of Contents

Letter from the Event Manager	3
XIS Philosophy	4
Mission Statement	4
Vision Statement	4
Schoolwide Learner Outcomes (SLOs)	4
Honor Code	4
Critical Thinking	4
Love of Learning	4
Technology	4
Global Citizenship	4
Department Goals	4
Policies and Procedures	5
After School Activities Eligibility	5
Student Expectations	5
Student Responsibilities	7
Academics	7
Attendance	8
Behavior	8
Equipment and Uniforms	9
Facilities	10
Locker Room Conduct	10
Travel	11
Health and Safety Policy	13
Internal Conflict Policy	14
Playing Time	14
Team Captains	15
Awards Information	16

Letter from the Event Manager

Hello and welcome to XIS After School Activities (ASAs),

We are so excited to have you, and your family join us on this wonderful journey of discovery and learning! At XIS we view ASAs as an opportunity to cultivate growth in all aspects of your well-being: Mentally, Physically, Emotionally/Socially, and Morally.

Your coaches are prepared for the season and excited to meet you. They will give their best in everything they do. As you will be growing throughout the season, they will be working hard to grow alongside you.

This year's After School Activities theme will be "Purpose."

Learning and growing in today's world can be difficult. In the world of sports and academia, so often there is a tension between growth and success. At XIS, we embrace this tension. For Warriors, "success" and "winning" are defined by the growth a person experiences.

While "success" and "winning" are not bad things, they can become the sole purpose of an activity. Our community recognizes that winning is a very exciting result, but it cannot be the MOST important result. We believe that the purpose of co-curriculars is to help students experience growth no matter what the activity is. By engaging with this purpose, we actively engage with and care for the well-being of our community.

We invite you now to join us in our After School Activities this year as we engage and empower lifelong learners and tomorrow's leaders!

Go Warriors!

Mr. Douglas Burks XIS Event Manager

XIS Philosophy

Mission Statement

XIS After School Activities cultivate excellence through actively engaging and caring for the well-being of our community.

Vision Statement

Engage and empower life-long learners and tomorrow's leaders.

Schoolwide Learner Outcomes (SLOs)

Honor Code

XIS students uphold the Honor Code (Warrior Path).

Critical Thinking

XIS students demonstrate critical thinking and creativity to solve problems.

Love of Learning

XIS students develop a love of learning and life-long pursuit of knowledge and truth.

Technology

XIS students responsibly navigate age-appropriate technology.

Global Citizenship

XIS students cultivate global citizenship through building relationships of trust and respect for others.

Learning Goals

- Provide and educate students with meaningful after school activities.
- Create opportunities for students to engage and interact with the local community.
- Maintain a safe learning environment for all students in all after school activities.
- Create an atmosphere of fun, learning, and collaboration for all after school activities.

Policies and Procedures

After School Activities Eligibility

In order to participate in an ASA a student must:

- Be enrolled at XIS as a full-time student.
- Be in good academic standing.
 - Secondary students should have no current grade below a 70 (C).
- Exhibit attitudes and behaviors consistent with the XIS Honor Code.
- Must be the correct age by September 1 of the current school year for the activity.
 - Under 19 (U19)
 - Students must be under the age of 19 years old on September 1, 2025.
 - Under 14 (U14)
 - Students must be under the age of 14 years old on September 1, 2025.
 - o Under 11 (U11)
 - Students must be under the age of 11 years old on September 1, 2025.
 - o Under 9 (U09)
 - Students must be under the age of 8 years old on September 1, 2025.
 - o 1st Grade 5, Grade 1 (1G5, G1)
 - Students must be in 1st Grade 5 or Grade 1 during the 2025-2026 school year.
 - Clubs: See Activity Catalog
- Register on TeamSnap
 - Semester 1 Deadline: Monday, August 18, 2025
 - Winter Sports Deadline: Monday, October 27, 2025
 - o Semester 2 Deadline: Monday, January 19, 2026
- Pay activity fees no more than 1 week after the start date.

If any of these steps is not completed, the student will NOT be allowed to participate in After School Activities until it is completed.

Student Expectations

As guests in the People's Republic of China, we are to act accordingly with respect toward its people, officials, customs, culture, and regulations. XIS views citizenship as an important part of learning. Students must remember that their actions in and outside of school reflect on XIS. Each student is a respected member of the XIS community and is required to act

responsibly. XIS teachers and Administration want to collaborate with parents to ensure this positive growth in students.

The Warrior Path (XIS Honor Code) is a statement of the values that form the foundation of XIS's community, guiding our actions and decisions. It serves as a reminder of how we believe people should act toward others. It forms a framework for the rules and policies by which we live. It gives us a visual symbol of who we have chosen to be as the XIS community. Our honor code is a declaration of who we are. At XIS we want to show the following qualities in our behavior toward our schoolwork, our classmates, our teachers, our administrators, school staff, and all who visit the XIS campus as our guests.

The Warrior Path

XIS Warriors are Honest

- We are sincere in our words and actions.
- We are willing to admit when we make mistakes.
- We won't take credit for other people's work or achievements.
- Our goal is to develop integrity in ourselves and others.
- We have nothing to hide because we are who we seem to be.

XIS Warriors are Loyal

- We are faithful to our community.
- We stand up for our classmates, friends, and school.
- If we won't say it to a student's or a teacher's face, we won't say it at all.
- We are there for each other even when times are tough.

XIS Warriors are Responsible

- We take responsibility for our own words and actions and accept the consequences.
- We define success (especially academic success) as doing our best and refusing to auit.
- We think twice before we do something that might hurt someone.
- We are aware of how our words and actions influence others, especially younger students.

XIS Warriors are Respectful

- We respect the rights and feelings of other students and teachers.
- We are respectful of other people's cultures and beliefs.
- We abide by the standards set for us because we know they are there to protect us.
- WE DO NOT USE VIOLENCE TO SOLVE PROBLEMS!
- We resolve conflicts peacefully and respectfully.

XIS Warriors are Friendly

- We welcome new people and try to make them feel at home.
- We accept other people as a part of our community even if they are different from us.
- We take notice of those who are left out and include them.
- We build others up with our words instead of tearing them down.
- We make friends for the sake of friendship rather than benefits.

XIS Warriors are Caring

- We care about and for one another.
- We are willing to give up our time and pride for others.
- We make room for forgiveness instead of holding grudges.
- We appreciate the time we share together and try not to take it for granted.

Student Responsibilities

Academics

- I. For students in Middle School and High School, a grade of at least a 70 (C) must be kept when participating in ASAs.
- II. Per XIS Academic Policy, a school-wide grade check will occur every 4.5 weeks.
 - A. Quarter 1: September 19, 2025
 - B. Quarter 1.5: October 28, 2025
 - C. Quarter 2: November 27, 2025
 - D. Quarter 2.5: January 8, 2026
 - E. Quarter 3: February 2, 2026
 - F. Quarter 3.5: April 9, 2026
- III. At the time of a grade check, if a student has a current grade that falls below a 70 (C) in any class, the student will be placed on Academic Probation.
 - A. Academic Probation means that a student will be able to participate in ASAs, but must raise their grade before the next grade check to remain eligible.
 - B. The following process will occur:
 - 1. A representative of Student Services and ASAs will be notified.
 - 2. A representative of Student Services and/or ASAs will meet with student.
 - a. Academic Probation will be explained.
 - b. An academic plan of improvement will be created if necessary
 - c. The student's parents will be notified of ASA Eligibility status.
 - d. The ASA representative will notify the Head Coach or Advisor of all included ASAs.
 - 3. After 4.5 weeks, another grade check will occur.
 - a. If the student's grades reach 70 (C) by the next grade check, the student will no longer be on Academic Probation. The student may participate in activities as normal.
 - b. If the student's grades do not reach 70 (C) by the next grade check, the student will be placed on Academic Suspension until the next grade check.
 - 1) Academic Suspension means that a student may not participate in any ASA for the rest of the 4.5 week time period.
 - 2) Following the time of Academic Suspension, if all of a student's grades reach the 70 (C) minimum, they will be eligible again.
- IV. Each student's academic case is unique, and outside factors will be considered when limiting a student's ASA participation.
- V. ASA Academic Probation is for internal use at XIS only. It will not appear on any official grade documentation such as transcripts, report cards, etc.
- VI. A student's parents hold the right to remove a student from participating in an ASA. A. If this decision is made, XIS Administration will support it.

B. Please note that if a student is removed from ASA participation by a parent's request, their earning of a Certificate of Completion may be affected.

Attendance

- I. XIS Sport ASAs occur within 3 seasons in the 2025-2026 school year
 - A. Fall (Season 1)
 - B. Winter (Season 2)
 - C. Spring (Season 3)
- II. XIS Club ASAs occur within 2 semesters in the 2025-2026 school year
 - A. Semester 1
 - B. Semester 2
- III. Specific dates and times for practices and meetings will be communicated in the XIS Activity Catalog and TeamSnap.
- IV. A student may register for multiple ASAs that occur at different days and times.
- V. When registering for an ASA, the student is expected to attend all organized team activities (OTAs).
 - A. All practices and scrimmages
 - B. All meetings
 - C. All games
 - D. All events
 - E. All tournaments
 - F. Schedules for games, activities, and events will be provided on the XIS Website and TeamSnap as soon as possible.
- VI. To receive an excused ASA Absence, please follow the XIS Student Attendance Policy:
 - . Absence Request forms are required and can be filled out as a digital form on Sycamore or Teams. For planned absences, the <u>Absence Form</u> must be filled out 5 school days in advance of the planned absence; otherwise, they will be considered unexcused.
 - A. **For sudden unexpected absences**, fill in the <u>Absence Form</u> on Sycamore or Teams **before 8am**. Forms submitted after 8 am will also be considered an unexcused absence (therefore no Teams option). According to current city regulations, a doctor's note is required when a student is absent due to sickness.
- VII. To be eligible for an ASA Participation Certificate and any other ASA award (Most Valuable, Most Improved, etc.) students must attend:
 - A. Sports Minimum 75% of all organized team activities.
 - B. Clubs Minimum 50% of all organized team activities.

Behavior

I. To provide a consistent environment for XIS Students and Staff, XIS ASAs will have the same student behavior expectations as during the school day.

- II. Please see the XIS Student Handbook for more information about Student Behavior Offenses: XIS Expectations > Severe Behavior Clause.
- III. In certain instances of Student Behavior Offenses, a student may be assessed as a school suspension by XIS Administration.
- IV. If an in-school or out-of-school suspension is given to a student who is currently participating in an After School Activity, the student will not be permitted to participate in the next organized team activity (OTA).
 - A. An organized team activity is any school-organized activity for a specific ASA. Examples are practices, games, trips, matches, etc.
 - B. This action will begin immediately after the in-school or out-of-school suspension is issued.
 - C. Further consultation with XIS Administration will occur to determine if the student may be permitted to further participate in After School Activities.

Equipment and Uniforms

- I. ASA Uniforms
 - A. Provided by XIS.
 - B. Sizes, numbers, and uniform names chosen by families during ASA Registration.
 - 1. Numbers will be issued to students based on the time order of ASA Registration.
 - The sooner you register, the greater the chance you will receive one of your top 3 uniform number choices.
 - Uniform numbers are NOT assigned by student grade level.
 - If a uniform is re-used from a season before, the student should communicate with the Event Manager before the season begins.
 - C. Kept by students at end of season.
 - D. It is recommended saving your uniform from season to season as the same styles and designs are often re-used.
 - 1. If a style differs, then that will be communicated as soon as possible.

- II. XIS Head Coaches and Advisors are responsible for uniform distribution.
 - A. Sport uniforms will be distributed before the first game/event of each season.
 - B. If there are issues that prevent this from occurring, there will be alternatives found.
- III. Once distributed, uniforms will be the responsibility of the student.
 - A. Uniforms will be handled with care and respect.
 - B. Uniforms will only be used and worn for school-related team events.
 - C. Uniforms are recommended to be washed in cold water and hang dried.
- IV. XIS ASA Uniforms are to be worn for all organized team activities (games, matches, tournaments).
 - A. If a student forgets their uniform, the student will not be permitted to play in their team's game, match, or tournament.
 - B. If student's uniform is damaged beyond normal wear and tear or becomes missing, the student will need to pay an additional fee for its replacement.
 - 1. Each uniform replacement will be considered on a case-by-case basis.
 - 2. There may be an additional fee if a student must replace a uniform already given that season.

Facilities

- I. XIS facilities are expected to be treated with respect.
 - A. Students must wear proper shoes for each facility.
 - 1. Tennis shoes for gymnasium and fitness center
 - 2. Cleats may be worn on the grass/artificial turf fields.
 - 3. Dress shoes, crocs, and slides may not be worn while participating in an ASA sport practice.
 - B. Students must properly use all available equipment under coach supervision.
 - C. Students must be properly supervised for all activity at XIS facilities.
 - D. Students are expected to keep XIS facilities clean by picking up and throwing away any trash.
- II. XIS facilities may only be used with permission from school Leadership through the Events Office.
 - A. XIS will retain scheduling priority for all facilities.
 - B. If a member of our community would like to schedule the facility for use, a message (Teams or Email) may be sent to the Event Manager.
 - C. Once permission is granted and any fees paid, the facility may be used for the agreed-upon time.
 - D. Any other facility rental questions should be directed to the Event Manager.

Locker Room Conduct

- I. All trash is to be picked up and placed in the appropriate trash receptacle.
- II. Students are expected to be considerate of all locker room equipment including but not limited to:
 - A. Benches/chairs

- B. Lockers
- C. Whiteboards
- D. Restroom facilities
- III. All personal items placed in the locker room should be:
 - A. Secured in personal lockers.
 - B. Removed once the day's activity is complete.
- IV. The following are not permitted in any XIS Bathroom, Changing Room, or Locker Room:
 - A. Glass bottles
 - B. Use of electronic devices including phones
 - C. Running or horseplay
 - D. Members of the opposite gender will not be permitted in a locker room together at any time.
 - 1. For co-ed team meetings, a meeting room separate from the locker room will be provided.
 - 2. Teams and groups visiting XIS will be provided with similar spaces.
- V. If any of the above rules are violated, the offender will be held accountable by XIS Administration.

Travel

General Travel Policy

Before Travel

- I. Students should travel to and from games and events with the team or club on the school provided method of transportation.
 - A. All people authorized to travel will be on the itinerary "Travel List."
 - B. If an exception or change needs to be made, the Event Manager must be notified 48 hours before travel.
- II. Coaches will receive an XIS Travel Itinerary before each off campus trip.
 - A. The XIS Travel Itinerary will include the following:
 - 1. Travel roster
 - 2. Location address
 - 3. Bus phone number
 - 4. Bus license plate
 - 5. Itinerary
 - 6. "What to bring" list
 - 7. Other information as needed (hotel address, hotel phone number, etc.)
 - B. An XIS First Aid Bag will be provided by the Nurse's Office and brought to any off campus activity. It should be returned to the Nurse's Office as soon as the group returns to the XIS Campus.
- III. If school transportation is not provided, parents may transport their child to and from an away game or match as needed.

During Travel

- I. All XIS Trips will be supervised by Coaches, Advisors, and other authorized adults.
- II. Each student will treat the transporting vehicle with respect and will pick up all trash.
- III. When traveling, courtesy will be shown to the driver by:
 - A. Keeping noise to a minimum.
 - B. Any music played will be done via personal headphones.
 - C. No flash photography will be permitted.
 - D. Students will remain seated at all times.
 - E. If a seat belt is available, it should be fastened.
- IV. Students will adhere to XIS Honor Code at all times.
- V. School designated and/or sport appropriate attire will be worn on the transportation provided. No changing is allowed when in the travel vehicle.
- VI. When exiting the vehicle, each student will say "Thank you" to the driver in the driver's language.

After Travel

- I. After an away activity or trip, parents may take their children home directly from the event.
 - A. Each student will have their dismissal listed as "Bus" or "Parent" in the travel roster.
 - B. If a change to the travel roster is desired by a student's parents, the parent must sign the travel roster provided by the Head Coach, Advisor, or other staff member.
 - C. If a parent wishes for their child to ride home with an adult other than themselves:
 - 1. It is expected that the XIS Office must receive permission 48 hours before the activity or trip.
 - 2. If permission is not given before the activity or trip, a phone call will be made to the non-attending parent to get permission.
 - D. The parent transporting the student will sign out the student on the travel roster after the student's parents are contacted.
- II. When exiting the travel vehicle, all trash must be picked up, all windows must be closed, and students will exit out of designated doors.

Local Travel (in Xi'an) of less than 1 day

Expenses

- I. Trip costs will be charged to parents of participating students in 1 installment.
- II. The total cost of the trip will be communicated at least 2 weeks in advance of the trip date.
- III. The total cost of the trip will be due at least 1 week in advance of the trip date.
- IV. The total cost of the trip will cover entry fees to the location and potentially any meals needed.
- V. Students will be responsible for purchasing any extras other than what is expressly provided by the school.
- VI. Costs associated with XIS chaperones are split between the families and the school.
- VII. Payment is non-refundable if the student later decides not to attend the trip.

Travel Requirements

- I. Signed Permission Form
 - A. Parents/guardians are required to submit your signature via WeCom for your child to attend any trip at least 1 week in advance of the trip date.
 - B. If you would not like for your child to attend any trip, please contact the XIS Office via the information below.
- II. Physical Chinese ID or International Passport
- III. Updated Emergency Contact Information in Sycamore
- IV. Updated Medical Information in Sycamore

Trip Suggested Items

Water Bottle (refillable)	Sunscreen (SPF 30 or higher)
Cap/Hat	Medicines labeled with instructions
Spending Money (Cash or phone with WeChat/Alipay)	Passport/Chinese ID Card
Change of clothes	Sport uniforms (sport trips only)
Athletic shoes (sport trips only)	

Health and Safety Policy

- I. XIS After School Activities will follow the same Health and Safety Policy as outlined in the XIS Student Handbook.
- II. Whether a student can continue school or participate in an ASA due to illness or injury is at the discretion of the School Nurse:
 - A. If a student is well enough to continue classes and well enough to participate in ASA activities, the student should stay to participate in their ASA.
 - B. If a student is required to go home by the nurse due to illness or injury, that student will miss any ASA activities that day.
 - C. If a student is well enough to continue classes, but not well enough to participate in ASA activities, the student may go home during normal dismissal.
 - 1. Students not feeling well should visit the school nurse before 15:00 to get permission to go home during normal dismissal.

- 2. If a student not feeling well visits the school nurse after 15:00, they must stay for ASA time.
- 3. If a student misses ASA time in this way more than 2 practices in a row due to illness or injury, they must provide a doctor's note to the school nurse.
- III. For certain sports, special safety equipment must be used while playing and practicing. This is to ensure students can participate to the best of their ability in a safe, supervised environment.
 - A. Below is a chart of the sports requiring special safety equipment at XIS.

	Basketball	Soccer	Volleyball	Baseball
Sport Goggles	Х	Х	Х	Х
Knee Pads			Х	
Shin Guards		Х		

- B. Knee Pads for Volleyball and Shin Guards for Soccer will be provided during uniform distribution for students.
 - 1. All school equipment used should be returned to the school once the season is complete.
 - 2. All equipment should be in good condition and clean when returned.

Internal Conflict Policy

- IV. If an issue arises between a student and coach/advisor, the following 3 step resolution format will be followed.
 - A. If no resolution is met in a step, the process will advance to the next step.
 - B. Not using this process may only be enacted by members of XIS Administration.

V. Resolution Process

- A. Step 1: Coach and Student Meeting Go to your coach after practice and inform them of your concern(s).
- B. Step 2: Coach and Parent Meeting A formal meeting will be scheduled between the coach and the student's parents. The ASA Coordinator will be notified of the meeting.
- C. Step 3: ASA Coordinator and Parent Meeting A formal meeting will be scheduled between the ASA Coordinator and the student's parents.
 - 1. The coach and/or student may be involved in the meeting at the ASA Coordinator's discretion.
 - Individual meetings for corroboration and information gathering may occur between the ASA Coordinator, student, and/or coach upon the ASA Coordinator's discretion.
 - 3. The XIS Principal will be notified of the meeting.
- D. If no resolution is reached after Step 3, XIS Administration will be involved to advise a new course of action on behalf of either or all parties involved.

Playing Time

- I. At XIS, playing time in games and events is an earned privilege for all ASAs.
- II. Each level of participation has different, level-appropriate expectations that will be used by the Head Coach or Advisors for games and events

A. U19: Merit-based

- 1. Playing time will be based on ability, attitude, and performance as well as following the XIS Honor Code.
- 2. Coaches will substitute according to game or event strategy.

B. U14: Inclusion-based

- 1. Playing time will be mostly based on ability, attitude, and performance as well as following the XIS Honor Code.
- 2. Coaches will strive to include every player in the game or event, though possibly not with equal playing time.

C. U11, U9, 1G5/G1, Clubs: Development-based

- 1. Playing time and participation will be based on personal development and fundamental learning as well as following the XIS Honor Code.
- 2. Coaches and Advisors will ensure all students have a chance to participate as much as possible.
- 3. This level is intended to give all students fun learning experiences involving fundamental skills and competition.

Team Captains

- I. At least 2 Team Captains will be selected for all U19 sport teams.
- II. Club Leaders/Team Captains may be selected for U14 sport teams and Academic Clubs based on the Advisor's/Coach's discretion.

III. Selection Process

- A. 1 Captain will be voted on by the players.
- B. 1 Captain will be selected by that XIS sport team's coaching staff.
- C. Rules
 - 1. Voting will be done via an online form: Link Here
 - 2. Only Juniors and Seniors are eligible.
 - a. If a Junior or Senior is not on the roster, Sophomores and Freshman may be voted on and/or selected.
 - 3. A player must have 1+ years of experience playing for XIS.
 - a. A player without XIS playing experience may be voted on and/or selected upon verification from XIS Coaching Staff and XIS Event Manager.
 - 4. 1 vote per player; votes for yourself will not be counted.
 - 5. Once a student is named as a Team Captain or Club Leader, they will be required to take the NFHS' Captain's Courses.
 - a. The Event Manager will distribute the courses to the students by email through the NFHS Portal.
 - A. Student Leadership: Becoming a Leader
 - B. Student Leadership: Leading Others
 - b. These courses must be completed within 2 weeks of being sent.
 - c. These courses are free but will require students to create an NFHSLearn account.

- d. U19 Team Captains and Secondary Club Leaders will be required to take the courses.
- e. U14 Team Captains may take these courses if desired.

Awards Information

General Information

- ASA awards are issued at the end of the season and/or school year and awards are given at the appropriate XIS Awards Events.
- In order to be eligible for the Participation Certificate and any other ASA award, students must attend:
 - Sports Minimum 75% of all organized team activities.
 - Clubs Minimum 50% of all organized team activities.

Seasonal Awards

ASA Level	Most Valuable Player	Most Improved Player	Coaches' Award	Participation Certificate
U19	X	X	Х	X
U14	X	X	X	X
U11, U09			X	X
1G5/ G1, Club				X

- This is the link for the ASA Award Voting Form.
- The following awards are determined by a post-season player and coach vote:
 - Most Valuable Player (MVP):
 - i. This is the player you feel was the most impactful to the team and helped others be better.
 - ii. They may not have been the best player, but the team wouldn't have been the same without them!
 - Most Improved Player (MIP):
 - i. This is the player you feel improved the most over the course of the entire season.
 - Remember that this can apply to physical, emotional, intellectual, social, and moral improvement.

- Coaches' Award Determined by sport Coaches selecting a student who most fully shows the XIS Honor Code.
- Participation Certificate Awarded to each student for:
 - Clubs
 - i. Attending a minimum 50% of all organized team activities.
 - ii. Completing the semester and school year in good academic and disciplinary standing.

Sports

- i. Attending a minimum 75% of all organized team activities
- ii. Completing the season and school year in good academic and disciplinary standing.
- A student will not earn a Participation Certificate if they:
 - Quit a team or club through their own or a parent's decision.
 - ii. Are suspended or expelled from XIS
 - iii. Do not meet the minimum percentage of all organized team activities.